
 

 CITY OF PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2015 6:30PM 
1000 SOUTH B STREET, PHOENIX OREGON 

 

082415_pc_minutes_final 
Planning Commission Minutes 

1 of 4 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/INTRODUCTION. Chair Summerhays called the 
Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:30 PM. In attendance were 
Commissioners Lewin, Eisenhauer, Couch, and Farlow and Chair Summerhays. 
Commissioners Atkin and Weiss were absent.  There was a quorum. Staff in 
attendance were Planning Director Matt Brinkley and Assistant Planner Steffen 
Roennfeldt. 

II. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA: None. 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR:  
A. Minutes from June 8, 2015 Regular Planning Commission.  MOVED BY 

FARLOW, SUPPORTED BY COUCH, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES. 

IV. NEW BUSINESS:  

A.  PUBLIC HEARING: SITE DESIGN REVIEW FOR PHOENIX PLAZA ROADS 

AND FOURTH STREET INFRASTRUCTURE PHASE 1 PROJECT – FILE 

NUMBER SP15-02: 

Mr. Brinkley clarified the procedures and rules for a Type III Public Hearing. 

Chair Summerhays pointed out that everybody is affected equally by this 

project. No conflict of interest were raised. She turned to the Planner for his 

presentation of the project.  

Brinkley explained the history of this area of Phoenix and pointed out the 

main bullet points of this Site Design Review. It includes 0.80 acres of 

roadway (extensions of 2nd, 3rd, and a new “parking street”), sanitary sewer, 

and stormwater facilities. Other parts of this project will be reviewed 

separately by the Planning Commission at a later date. 

Brinkley explained why parts of the project had already started, including 

grading and wetland restoration.  

He pointed out the different Development Sites and explained the plans for 

these development sites to the Commissioners.  

Commissioner Couch questioned why heavy equipment was already onsite 

and why work on the project had already started prior to this meeting.  

Brinkley said there was discussion whether the project would actually require 

Site Design Review or not. The Land Development Code is not entirely clear 

on requirements for public infrastructure projects. There was further 

discussion. Brinkley also said he would have preferred to bring the proposal 

to the Planning Commission earlier. He also reminded the Commissioners 

that many public meetings had been held concerning this project over the 

previous 2 years, and that the concept was originally developed 17 years ago 



 

 CITY OF PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2015 6:30PM 
1000 SOUTH B STREET, PHOENIX OREGON 

 

082415_pc_minutes_final 
Planning Commission Minutes 

2 of 4 

 

through the City Center Plan element of the Comprehensive Plan.  And at this 

point, he added, only mass clearing and mass grading activities were being 

conducted. 

Commissioner Couch said that, in the future, he would like to see 

representatives of Phoenix Urban Renewal to come to the Planning 

Commission meetings and present their projects.  Commissioner Lewin 

supported this idea, and recommended greater separation between the roles 

of applicant and reviewer.  Mr. Brinkley agreed with both sentiments. 

Commissioner Lewin inquired about the bus transfer station which was 

discussed in the past. Mr.  Brinkley said that RVTD had recently changed its 

plans. The transfer station was, conceptually, moved to Talent.  Given current 

fiscal realities, Brinkley doubted that the transit district would proceed with 

construction of the transfer station and route changes in the near future.  

There was discussion. 

Commissioner Eisenhauer said that the majority of people wanted to see 

some something happening in downtown Phoenix, therefore, he is not too 

concerned about limited site work being started prior to approval. 

Brinkley said that if configuration of the roads and the site weren’t so 

consistent with everything that was discussed in the past, he would be a lot 

more concerned.  

Chair Summerhays opened the hearing to the public: 

Thor Thompson, owner of 315 South Main Street, asked for clarification about 

the future land uses in downtown Phoenix. Brinkley answered all his 

questions.  

Terri McKay, owner of the Subway at 315 North Main, wanted to know about 

the future changes to OR-99. Brinkley explained the restriping project to her. 

Ms. McKay also raised concerns about the construction project affecting her 

business and she would like the contractors to be a little “kinder” to local 

businesses. Brinkley said PHURA and the City will endeavor to manage and 

mitigate construction impacts. 

Matt Sakreta, owner of Superior Carpet at 133 N Main, had concerns about 

sewage and wetlands on his property and questions about the new road 

configuration. Brinkley addressed his questions.  

No other persons were present to provide testimony, and Chair Summerhays 

closed the public comment portion of the public hearing. She pointed out that 



 

 CITY OF PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2015 6:30PM 
1000 SOUTH B STREET, PHOENIX OREGON 

 

082415_pc_minutes_final 
Planning Commission Minutes 

3 of 4 

 

the staff report identified several instances where the application had not 

provided enough information for review, while all other items conformed to the 

Land Development Code. Brinkley said that with both the landscaping and 

stormwater facilites, PHURA is working with RVSS to arrive at a final design. 

Planning for the wetland park will occur throughout that process.  He also 

went over the proposed conditions of approval and explained them to the 

Commissioners. 

Commissioner Lewin inquired about the protection of mature trees. Brinkley 

said that the trees at 3rd and Main will be conserved. There’s also a large tree 

in the middle of the site that the City hopes to preserve. The City will do their 

best to preserve trees and other important vegetation.  

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER LEWIN TO APPROVE SP15-02 WITH 

CONDITIONS AS PRESENTED. SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 

FARLOW. 

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS: 
AYES: 5 
NAYES: 0 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

B. PRESENTATION ON DRAFT HOUSING NEEDS ASSESMENT 

Mr. Brinkley distributed a draft of the first four chapters of the Housing Needs 

Assessment to the Commissioners. He said that he was surprised with how 

fast he got back the first draft version of the housing needs assessment. He 

wanted to have the Commissioners to take a look at it. There was discussion. 

Commissioner Couch said that while he wants to address housing shortages, 

the City has to remember the downtown core of the city. He wants to make 

sure that the Planning Commission will look very carefully at all the 

developments coming in front of them.  

Mr. Brinkley said that the intent of the City Center district does require a 

certain amount of commercial development. He also said that PHURA has not 

preselected any developers. That decision has not been made. PHURA 

understands that the City does want commercial space downtown. There was 

discussion. 

He also pointed out that there is a huge deficiency in rentals (multi-family) and 

affordable housing.  



 

 CITY OF PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2015 6:30PM 
1000 SOUTH B STREET, PHOENIX OREGON 

 

082415_pc_minutes_final 
Planning Commission Minutes 

4 of 4 

 

C. PRESENTATION ON DRAFT BUILDABLE LANDS INVENTORY.  The 

presentation transitioned to the Buildable Land Inventory. Roennfeldt 

explained how he has been approaching the BLI.  He reviewed his initial 

findings.  The City currently has 1,100 acres within its current Urban Growth 

Boundary.  There are about 475 acres of residential land in the UGB 

currently.   

Roenfeldt explained the differences between the various categories of 

existing residential development; partially vacant, redevelopable, constrained, 

etc.   

V. PUBLIC COMMENT: Matt Sakreta asked a question about noise regulations. 

VI. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS:  

Commissioner Lewin said that he has a concern about planned bike lanes on Bear 

Creek Drive. He also wanted staff to verify that the current UGB boundary includes 

properties on the south side of Camp Baker Road. He has no recollection of that 

part of town being within the UGB. 

VII. PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT: None. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT: Vice-Chair Lewin adjourned the meeting at 7:40PM. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________  

Mikki Summerhays, Chair  

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Matt Brinkley, Planning Director 


